


1 
	

Plaintiffs, PETER HUK ("Peter Huk" or "Huk" or "Peter") and BEVERLY RAFF 

2 I ("Beverly Raff'or "Raff' or "Beverly"), collectively referred to herein as "Plaintiffs," respectfully 

3 I represent and allege as follows: 

4 
	

1. 	At all relevant times, Plaintiff, Peter Huk, was a resident of the County of Santa 

5 I Barbara. He is a lecturer at the University of California, Santa Barbara, in its Writing Program. 

6 
	

2. 	At all relevant times, Plaintiff, Beverly Raff, was also a resident of the County of 

7 Santa Barbara. Beverly Raff is a former producer of music videos for internationally renowned 

8 music bands. 

9 
	

3. 	At all times applicable herein, the COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA was and is a 

10 I public entity ("Santa Barbara County") 

11 
	

4. 	At all times applicable herein, the DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

12 I ("DSS" or "Department of Social Services") was and is a subdivision or entity of Defendant 

13 COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA. 

14 
	

5. 	At all times mentioned herein, SANTA BARBARA CHILD WELFARE 

15 I SERVICES ("CWS") was and is a subdivision or entity of Defendant COUNTY OF SANTA 

16 

17 
	

6. 	At all times applicable herein Defendant, KATHY GALLAGHER ("Kathy 

18 I Gallagher" or "Gallagher"), was, and remains, the Director of County of Santa Barbara Department 

19 of Social Services. She has supervisory responsibility and authority over CWS and its social 

20 worker employees. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that Gallagher, at 

21 all relevant times mentioned herein, had the power to promulgate and implement policies 

22 governing the conduct of Santa Barbara County social workers in relation to the agency's handling 

23 of juvenile dependency matters. On further information and belief, Plaintiffs allege that Gallagher 

24 resides in Santa Barbara County, and is an officer, agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County, 

25 DSS, and CWS. Defendant Gallagher is sued herein in both her individual capacity and her official 

26 capacity as director of the Santa Barbara Department of Social Services. 

27 
	

7. 	At all times applicable herein, Defendant, DELFINO NEIRA ("Delfino Neira" or 

28 I "Neira"), was an individual residing, on information and belief, in Santa Barbara County, and an 

-2- 
FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES 



1 officer, agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County and DSS. Defendant Neira is sued herein in 

2 both his individual capacity and in his official capacity as an employee of Santa Barbara County. 

	

3 
	

8. 	At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, CINDY NOTT ("Cindy Nott" or "Nott"), 

4 was an individual residing, on information and belief, in Santa Barbara County, and an officer, 

5 I agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County and DSS. Defendant Nott is sued herein in both her 

6 individual capacity and in her official capacity as an employee of Santa Barbara County. 

	

7 
	

9. 	At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, SUSAN TOGNAZZINI ("Susan 

8 Tognazzini" or "Tognazzini"), was an individual residing, on information and belief, in Santa 

9 Barbara County, and an officer, agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County and DSS. Defendant 

10 Tognazzini is sued herein in both her individual capacity and in her official capacity as an 

11 employee of Santa Barbara County. 

	

12 
	

10. 	At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, KATHY DAVIS ("Kathy Davis" or 

13 "Davis"), was an individual residing, on information and belief, in Santa Barbara County, and an 

14 officer, agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County and DSS. Defendant Davis is sued herein in 

15 both her individual capacity and in her official capacity as an employee of Santa Barbara County 

	

16 
	

11. 	At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, JULIE DE FRANCO ("Julie De Franco" 

17 or "De Franco"), was an individual residing, on information and belief, in Santa Barbara County, 

18 and an officer, agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County and DSS. Defendant De Franco is 

19 sued herein in both her individual capacity and in her official capacity as an employee of Santa 

20 Barbara County. 

	

21 
	

12. 	At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, CHRISTEL BARROS ("Christel Barros" 

22 or "Barros"), was an individual residing, on information and belief, in Santa Barbara County, and 

23 an officer, agent, and employee of Santa Barbara County and DSS. Defendant Barros is sued herein 

24 in both her individual capacity and in her official capacity as an employee of Santa Barbara 

25 County. 

	

26 
	

13. 	Hereinafter, when referred to collectively, the Defendants identified in paragraphs 6 

27 through 12, above, will be referred to as "SOCIAL WORKER DEFENDANTS." 

	

28 
	

14. 	At all times mentioned herein, Defendant, FRANCENE KELLY ("Francene Kelly" 
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or "Kelly"), was the minor's counsel for R.T. Plaintiffs are informed and believe that Francene 

2 Kelly is and was a resident of Santa Barbara County. 

	

3 
	

15. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that each of the above 

4 named Defendants, with the exception of Francene Kelly, was at all times acting under color of 

5 law in committing the acts herein alleged, and, that in doing the things herein alleged, Defendants, 

6 and each of them, were acting within the course and scope of their duties as employees or agents of 

7 Santa Barbara County. As to Francene Kelly, Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis 

8 allege that up until the moment Defendants, and each of them, developed their plan to remove R.T. 

9 from Plaintiffs' care based on false allegations and innuendo, Francene Kelly may have been 

10 I purely a private actor under contract with the County of Santa Barbara to provide attorney services 

11 to the minor R.T. However, as soon as she voluntarily joined with the remaining Defendants, and 

12 participated in their unlawful and unethical scheme, and jointly collaborated with the remaining 

13 Defendants, and each of them, to effectuate their plan of removing R.T. from Plaintiffs' care by 

14 unlawful, dishonest, and unethical means, then Francene Kelly was also acting under color of law 

15 in voluntary collaboration with the government in the unlawful conduct alleged herein below, and 

16 her liability is coextensive with that of the remaining government Defendants with whom she 

17 voluntarily collaborated. In the alternative, Francene Kelly, as court-appointed minor's counsel, 

18 was at all times acting as an agent of the County of Santa Barbara or other governmental agency as 

19 a private attorney under contract. Insofar as she may have been a government agent, Plaintiffs are 

20 informed and believe and on such basis allege that Kelly was, at all times relevant herein, acting 

21 under color of law in committing the acts herein alleged, and in so doing, was acting within the 

22 course and scope of her duties as a governmental agent and/or employee.' 

	

23 
	

16. 	Plaintiffs are ignorant of the true names and capacities of those Defendants sued 

24 herein as DOES 1 through 100, and for that reason have sued such Defendants under such fictitious 

25 

	

26 	
'Francene Kelly admits in her Motion to Dismiss the original Complaint, entered in the Court's docket as 

27 Document 7, on May 7, 2012, that she was at all times either a government agent, or a court-appointed private attorney. 
See Document 7, pp.  7:12-14:10. Whether this is a legally and factually correct position, or not, remains to be seen. No 

28 discovery has yet been had, and juvenile court documents have not yet been disclosed. Nevertheless, Ms. Kelly has 
taken the position in papers she herself signed and filed with the Court. Hence, her statements may be held against her 
as admissions of a party opponent. 
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1 names. Plaintiffs reserve their rights, and will seek leave of Court to amend this Complaint to 

2 I identify said Defendants when their identities have been ascertained. Plaintiffs are informed and 

3 I believe and thereon allege that each of the fictitiously named Defendants was in some manner 

4 liable and legally responsible in that their conduct caused the damages and injuries set forth herein. 

	

5 
	

17. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that each of the above 

6 named parties was and is the agent, employee, principal, or employer of each of the remaining 

7 I Defendants and/or vice versa. In addition, Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis 

8 allege that the Defendants named hereinabove, and each of them, are responsible in some manner 

9 for the occurrences herein alleged, and that each of the above named Defendants conspired with, 

10 and/or aided and/or abetted each of the remaining Defendants in committing the acts herein 

11 alleged. 

	

12 
	

COMMON ALLEGATIONS 

	

13 
	

18. 	In 2007, Peter and Beverly read an article in a local paper, about the dire need for 

14 I foster families in Santa Barbara County. They wanted to get involved. They thought they could 

15 provide a service to the community, and at the same time help children and families in need. They 

16 were able, and willing, to open their home and provide a safe and stable environment for children 

17 in need; and, they did so. As it turned out, they were good at it. They were highly praised foster 

18 parents. That is, until they questioned the motives and conduct of the social workers who ran the 

19 case they were involved with. Then, what had been a professional, functional, and gratifying 

20 relationship with government officials, geared toward the "best interests" of children, turned into a 

21 nightmare for both Plaintiffs and the child they came to love and cherish. 

	

22 
	

19. 	The journey that led them to the current situation began two weeks before they 

23 finished their Foster Care Program classes in 2008. They were asked to take in a sibling group of 

24 two girls, aged 4 and 7, and a boy, R.T., who was then five years old. Incredibly, these children had 

25 already been in the foster system for two years. No stable home environment had been found. In 

26 fact, by that time the County had allowed these children to meander through a maze of a dozen 

27 temporary placement foster families. When Defendants asked Peter and Beverly if they would help 

28 provide a stable home for these children, Peter and Beverly rose to the challenge. However, due to 
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1 I county licensing restrictions and the availability of only one bedroom in their home, they were 

2 offered an option: either take the girls or R.T. 

3 
	

20. 	Social workers told Peter and Beverly that the girls were desirable and adoptable 

4 whereas no one wanted their brother, R.T., due to his violent verbal and physical behavior. The 

5 social worker in charge of the case told Peter and Beverly that R.T. required extensive therapy and 

6 would ultimately be placed in an institution. But the girls, having no such problems, would be easy 

7 to place in a permanent home. She explained that R.T. suffered from encopresis and enuresis; he 

8 stuttered severely; he had multiple diagnoses ranging from borderline mental retardation to 

9 emotional disturbance. Peter and Beverly thought the only chance this boy had at a normal life 

10 rested with them. They knew it would be tough, but it was R.T.'s only shot. Peter and Beverly 

11 believed R.T. could develop into a fine young man, if given the opportunity and proper care. 

12 Hence, Peter and Beverly chose to bring R.T., a boy that nobody else wanted, into their home. 

13 
	

21. 	The child's therapist, Nancy Johnson, described R.T. as a "feral mess," concerning 

14 I the state of his development at the time of placement in Peter and Beverly's care. R.T. displayed 

15 primitive behaviors, an inability to communicate, and aggressive social patterns. Even his therapist 

16 once rejected R.T. from a session, due to his violent behavior. R.T. would bite, kick and exhibit 

17 verbal aggression. When he bit, he would draw blood. R.T. also suffered from encopresis (the 

18 involuntary discharge of feces) and enuresis (the involuntary discharge of urine). He was deathly 

19 afraid of toilets and suffered from chronic and severe constipation. R.T. would also hump the floor, 

20 door, and the couch in an inappropriate, sexual manner. Nearly every night, R.T. experienced 

21 I nightmares, where he would alternate between shouting obscenities and whimpering like a baby. 

22 
	

22. 	Since May 8, 2008, the day that Peter and Beverly received R.T. into their home, 

23 I they were lauded by many social workers and CWS officials for their exemplary efforts and the 

24 tremendous progress they made with R.T., who lived with them for two years before he was 

25 snatched from their care, without any notice, whatsoever, and without any good, just, or legal 

26 cause. During the course of that two year period, Peter and Beverly repeatedly expressed their love 

27 for the child, and their sincere interest in adopting R.T., so that they could raise him as their own, 

28 in a loving home. Since the moment the issue of adoption was first brought up, they were 
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1 I repeatedly told by social workers and CWS officials that they were doing a great job with R.T. and 

2 that they would have no problem at all adopting him. Social worker Julie Mann even told Peter 

3 I that, "you'll have no problems adopting [R.T.]. Everyone knows what you two have done for him." 

4 
	

23. 	R.T. entered Peter and Beverly's home in 2008, unable to care for himself on even a 

5 basic level. Due to his fear of toilets and rest rooms, he would simply defecate in his pants, on the 

6 floor, or on the street - depending on where he was at the time the need arose. He would wet his 

7 I pants without awareness. When he would get hungry and thirsty, he did not know how to address 

8 his needs. R.T. was simply unaware of how to deal with his most basic bodily functions. Due to 

9 impaired short-term memory, R.T. would forget what he did several minutes before, or even what 

10 he was told just seconds before. 

11 
	

24. 	Caring for R.T. was a monumental task. R.T. required constant supervision, both 

12 I during the day and at night. During the day, he was hyperactive and given to fits of violence. 

13 Nearly every night, during the first three months he was with Peter and Beverly, R.T. suffered from 

14 night terrors, somnambulism, and other unpredictable behaviors, thus requiring constant 

15 monitoring. 

16 
	

25. 	Nevertheless, Peter and Beverly courageously and lovingly rose to the occasion, 

17 I sacrificing a great deal of their own personal lives - and substantial resources - to provide the care 

18 that R.T. needed. At each turn, Peter and Beverly showed R.T. patience, love, and care to help R.T. 

19 overcome his numerous problems. As a result of Beverly's loving and patient care, R.T. gradually 

20 gained control over his encopresis, overcame his fear of the toilet, and began to use the restroom 

21 like a normal boy. 

22 
	

26. 	But, Peter and Beverly desperately needed help. Indeed, they inquired, on the very 

23 first day of taking custody, regarding the availability of services for children with special needs, 

24 which they had learned about during their County Foster Parent training. However, the services 

25 which CWS actually provided to them proved to be either utterly inadequate to address R.T.'s 

26 issues, or were not forthcoming at all. Beverly complained repeatedly. Her complaints about CWS 

27 shortfalls created a substantial measure of consternation on the part of the Defendants, who, on 

28 information and belief, were in some manner, themselves, responsible for the shortfalls. 
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1 
	

27. 	R.T.' s medical records indicated that he was diagnosed all over the map: borderline 

2 mental retardation, schizophrenia, bipolar disorder, dissociative disorder, and ADHD. Yet, it took 

3 I nearly five months, after Peter and Beverly took custody of R.T., for him to even receive 

4 I meaningful mental health therapy from CWS. Beverly complained about this. 

5 
	

28. 	Peter and Beverly did receive aides from Therapy Behavioral Services ("TBS"), 

6 I beginning in May 2008 and ending in May 2009, Therapy Response Aides ("TRA") beginning in 

7 August 2008 and ending shortly thereafter, and Senate Bill 163 Wraparound program assistance, 

8 beginning in September 2008 and ending in September 2009. However, these services were mere 

9 bandages and did not provide the level or type of services needed by R.T. Beverly complained 

10 about these issues as well. 

11 
	

29. 	Still, Peter and Beverly did not want to be number thirteen (13) in R.T.'s long list of 

12 I placements. They were committed to providing R.T. with the care necessary for him to develop 

13 into a productive young adult. From May 2008 onward, Peter and Beverly sacrificed their personal 

14 freedom and time together alone. They went to great lengths to give R.T. a stable and loving home 

15 environment. Although CWS procured a list of twelve potential foster-family respite exchange 

16 providers, none of them would agree to provide respite. Peter and Beverly desperately needed 

17 respite because R.T. ' s needs were 24/7. At one point, "Wraparound" offered to pay for respite 

18 I services at a home for special-needs children. However, "Wraparound" quickly became inflexible, 

19 adopted a position that respite needs were akin to daycare, and refused to provide further services. 

20 Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that "Wraparound" services were 

21 withheld as a means of punishing them for voicing their concerns and complaints. 

22 
	

30. 	Nevertheless, Peter and Beverly were committed to R.T. and had become bonded to 

23 him. So, instead of dumping him back into the County's lap, as every prior foster home had done, 

24 they utilized creative methods to address R.T. ' s special needs. For example, they followed the 

25 suggestion of Carmen Parra, of County Special Education, to use video recordings so that R.T. 

26 could observe his behaviors and reflect on them in a safe setting. They were excited to find that 

27 visual therapy greatly enhanced R.T.'s memory. 

28 
	

31. 	Peter and Beverly also incorporated ideas from the child's therapist and avidly read 
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1 I about other therapies, adapting each to fit the child that they were quickly getting to know more 

2 I intimately than anyone else. Peter and Beverly enrolled R.T. in drumming lessons, swimming 

3 lessons, and hip-hop dance classes, so that he could develop his gross motor skills while learning 

4 to adapt to a group setting. 

	

5 
	

32. 	Fellow foster parents and CWS agents alike acknowledged that no one would do for 

6 R.T. what Peter and Beverly were able to do. Their love and devotion, as well as R.T.'s 

7 I phenomenal progress, were noted in numerous social workers' and mental health workers' reports. 

	

8 
	

33. 	Peter and Beverly continued to bond with R.T., whom they had grown to understand 

9 more than anyone else in the world could. 

	

10 
	

34. 	As early as January 2009, Peter and Beverly expressed to CWS their sincere interest 

11 in adopting R.T. Discussions with social workers regarding adoption were ongoing. Plaintiffs are 

12 informed and believe and thereon allege that, in or about November 2009, Kathy Davis filed a 

13 "change of status" form with the Juvenile Court, indicating that Peter and Beverly desired legal 

14 guardianship status. 

	

15 
	

35. 	In or about January 2010, Peter and Beverly contacted social worker Susan 

16 I Tognazzini and requested contact with an Adoptions Unit social worker for the purpose of 

17 engaging in the process of adopting R.T. On or about March 3, 2010, following discussions with 

18 social workers and following the Foster Care Ombudsman's recommendation, Plaintiffs filed a De 

19 Facto Parent Request with the Juvenile Court. They repeatedly confirmed their long term 

20 commitment to R.T. and expressed their desire to adopt him. Peter and Beverly continued 

21 requesting an appointment with the Adoptions Unit in February, March, and April of 2010. Thus, 

22 Defendants, and each of them, knew or should have known that Plaintiffs, Peter and Beverly, were 

23 prospective adoptive parents, or, alternatively, met the legal requirements such that they were 

24 entitled to rights as prospective adoptive parents. 

	

25 
	

36. 	As R.T. 'S caregivers, Peter and Beverly were not happy with the level or quality of 

26 I County services available for R.T.'s special needs, and they made their complaints known. CWS 

27 staff became hostile and retaliatory against Peter and Beverly for voicing their concerns about 

28 unskilled workers, inflexibility within the program to accommodate special-needs children, and 
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1 I fiscal waste. 

	

2 
	

37. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that Santa Barbara County, by 

3 I and through its employees, including but not limited to, Cindy Nott, Delfino Neira, and Susan 

4 I Tognzzini, retaliated against Peter and Beverly, by punishing and attacking them, and the very 

5 I child CWS was supposed to protect. For example, though R.T. had been promised two years of 

6 I Wraparound services, Nott ensured that such services were cut a year short. The Social Worker 

7 I Defendants, and each of them, were aided, abetted and encouraged by minor's counsel, Francene 

8 I Kelly. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that this was done as means of 

9 punishing Plaintiffs for advocating for R.T.'s needs too strongly - for complaining too much. 

	

10 
	

38. 	In or about April 2009, Peter and Beverly reached out to Defendant, Francene Kelly, 

11 in the hopes that she would help to ensure R.T.'s continued progress in their care. Francene Kelly 

12 had previously praised Peter and Beverly's commitment to R.T. whenever the opportunity arose. 

13 Peter and Beverly therefore justifiably hoped that they would find an ally in Ms. Kelly to obtain 

14 services for R.T. They were horribly mistaken. 

	

15 
	

39. 	Instead of helping, Ms. Kelly angrily informed Peter and Beverly that she 

16 I "advocates for children and not for foster parents." Peter and Beverly told Kelly they did not 

17 understand this division between child and parents. They told her that they had been sacrificing 

18 their lives for R.T.'s best interest, and assumed Ms. Kelly also had R.T.'s best interests at heart. 

19 Ms. Kelly became aggressive, angry, and combative. Ms. Kelly threatened them saying, words to 

20 the effect of "you just wait and see." On numerous occasions in the then recent past, certain 

21 Defendants expressed angst at Beverly's aggressive advocacy for R.T. '5 needs. The services R.T. 

22 needed were expensive, and the County agencies and Defendants did not want to pay for these 

23 services, despite R.T. '5 needs. This conflict of interests created friction between Plaintiffs and 

24 Defendants, and each of them. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that at 

25 some point, the Defendants, and each of them, cooked up a plan to get R.T. out of Plaintiffs' care 

26 and rid themselves of the constant thorn in their side that Plaintiffs had become. 

	

27 
	

40. 	In December 2009, when all services had been terminated, Peter and Beverly 

28 appeared before Judge James Herman to ask that he reinstate Wraparound services for R.T. 
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1 I Francene Kelly opposed Peter and Beverly's request, falsely characterizing Peter and Beverly as 

2 I greedy foster parents out for personal financial gain. She knew her statements to the court were 

3 I false when she made them. Yet, she engaged in a pervasive pattern of judicial deception as part of 

4 the larger overall scheme to work together with the remaining Defendants, and each of them, to 

5 I teach Peter and Beverly a lesson for their questioning of Defendants' motives and conduct. 

6 I Previously glowing reports of Peter and Beverly's accomplishments and R.T.'s growth, which had 

7 been the pattern of the social workers' reports up until that point, transformed - practically 

8 overnight - into venomous accusations that Peter and Beverly "failed to show a commitment" to 

9 R.T., and that they sought services for personal monetary gain. These accusations were false, and 

10 the reporting Defendants, including social workers Kathy Davis and Susan Tognazzini, knew it at 

11 the time they filed their respective reports. 

12 
	

41. 	By January 2010, Kelly was actively blocking efforts by Peter and Beverly to obtain 

13 I support for R.T. and maliciously and falsely belittling their efforts before the Court. On or about 

14 January 21, 2010, following a hearing, in the presence of Raff and Huk, Kelly angrily shouted to 

15 social worker Susan Tognazzini, "I want that child removed immediately from that home!" Ms. 

16 Kelly further proceeded to voice baseless and false concerns to the juvenile court and the case 

17 carrying social workers about how she was "troubled" by Peter and Beverly. She did this with the 

18 specific intent of maligning Peter and Beverly for the purpose of getting R.T. removed from their 

19 care without regard for their rights, or the child's interests. By late March 2010, Kelly began 

20 fabricating claims against Peter and Beverly and assisting the social workers in their scheme to 

21 deceive the juvenile court with lies, including but not limited to, statements: (1) that Peter and 

22 Beverly were alienating mental health workers, when, in fact, R.T. was no longer receiving 

23 services because MediCal had timed out; (2) that CWS was paying for R.T. to receive autism 

24 services from UCSB Koegel Autism Center, when not a dime of CWS funds went towards such 

25 services; (3) that Beverly was improperly diagnosing R.T. as autistic for personal financial gain, 

26 i.e. to receive more money for special-needs cases; and (4) that Beverly was improperly diagnosing 

27 R.T. as having tuberous sclerosis. 

28 
	

42. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that Francene Kelly has 
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1 been a juvenile dependency minor's counsel for many years, and through that experience, has 

2 developed close relationships and even deep friendships with the other Defendants in this case. 

3 I Based on information and belief, Plaintiffs further allege that Ms. Kelly participated in the crusade 

4 against these Plaintiffs by collaborating with and encouraging the social worker Defendants' 

5 complicity in removing R.T. from Plaintiffs' custody, based on false claims of exigency and 

6 without first obtaining a court order or warrant to remove the child. 

	

7 
	

43. 	From December 2009 through October 2011, Peter and Beverly found themselves 

8 I entangled in a nightmare created by CWS social workers Kathy Davis, Delfino Neira, Cindy Nott, 

9 Susan Tognazzini, Christel Barros, and minor's counsel, Francene Kelly, who all worked in 

10 concert to unlawfully remove R.T. from Plaintiffs' care. The vitriol culminated in Defendants 

11 falsely claiming that Peter and Beverly physically abused R.T., placing him in imminent danger. 

12 Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that Defendants, and each of them, 

13 participated in a bad-faith campaign to smear Peter and Beverly, and to depict them as "mentally 

14 unstable" and "emotionally abusive," with the ultimate goal of unlawfully removing R.T. and 

15 terminating whatever rights had developed in favor of Plaintiffs. 

	

16 
	

44. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that Santa Barbara County 

17 was not interested in serving R.T. '5 needs, by securing specialized mental health treatment, 

18 because substantial county funds would need to be spent. On or about February 11, 2010, Neira 

19 disclosed that CWS would prefer to institutionalize R.T. in a group home at the cost of $6,000 to 

20 $7,000 per month of federal funding, rather than spend $1,000 of county funds towards addressing 

21 R.T.'s autism spectrum disorder needs. 

	

22 
	

45. 	In February and March 2010, newly-hired County Mental Health Services Dr. 

23 Rosanna Jimeno, the first clinical psychologist assigned to R.T., prepared her report for the Team 

24 Decision Meeting ("TDM"), scheduled for March 26, 2010. Dr. Jimeno observed R.T. with Peter 

25 and Beverly in the home environment and at an external location in Santa Barbara. In her report to 

26 the TDM, Dr. Jimeno advised that R.T.' s best interest was served by remaining in the home of 

27 Peter and Beverly and that they should be offered respite opportunities. During the TDM, Peter and 

28 Beverly reported that R.T.' s sexual behaviors were escalating, and they requested Mental Health 
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support in addressing these behavioral issues. Peter and Beverly stated to the group, including 

2 I Francene Kelly and some of the social worker Defendants, that R.T. had identified a foster teen 

3 sibling (Minor N.)2  from his previous foster placement as a perpetrator of sexual abuse. Beverly 

4 and Peter explained that R.T. demonstrated the "sexing" that Minor N. had acted out on him by 

5 humping the couch and the door. Beverly disclosed to the group that this was the same person 

6 R.T.'s older sister had identified as the person who molested her in R.T.'s prior foster placement. 

7 R.T. ' s sister revealed this when she spent the weekend at Peter and Beverly's home. Kelly and the 

8 social worker Defendants vehemently denied the former sexual abuse, and became angry and upset 

9 that Peter and Beverly even brought the issue up. At the end of the TDM, Francene Kelly angrily 

10 stated that she intended to do everything she could to see that R.T. was removed from Peter and 

11 Beverly's home. Kelly was so angry that Peter and Beverly challenged her motives and 

12 competency that she undertook a vindictive effort to use her long standing relationships with the 

13 remaining Social Worker Defendants, and each of them, to ensure the removal of R.T. from 

14 Plaintiffs' care, and, in the process aided, abetted, and assisted in depriving them of their rights to 

15 due process arising under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution. 

16 
	

46. 	On April 1, 2010, the Juvenile Court decided Peter and Beverly's Petition for De 

17 I Facto Parent Status. CWS, by and through social worker Kathy Davis and their retained counsel, 

18 objected to said petition, alleging that Peter and Beverly had shown no commitment (in the form of 

19 requesting legal guardianship or adoption) to R.T. in their two years of fostering him. Said 

20 representation was false, and Kathy Davis knew it, because Peter and Beverly had expressed an 

21 interest in adoption or legal guardianship on numerous previous occasions to social workers and 

22 supervisors, including Kathy Davis and Susan Tognazzini. Acting in voluntary collaboration and in 

23 concert with each of the remaining Defendants, Francene Kelly falsely claimed that Beverly was 

24 self-diagnosing R.T. and influencing the top neurologist, Dr. Ramos-Platt, at the Children's 

25 Hospital, and R.T. 's pediatrician, Dr. Ernest Kolendrianos, to view R.T. as autistic and potentially 

26 prone to tuberous sclerosis in order to obtain services. These claims were not only absurd, but were 

27 also knowingly false. Based on these lies, proffered by these Defendants as set forth above, the 

28 

21n order to protect the identity and privacy interests of a minor, the name of this child is not disclosed herein. 
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I juvenile court denied Plaintiffs' De Facto Parent status. 

	

2 	47. 	Peter and Beverly continued to remind Tognazzini and press her to check the status 

3 of the adoptions procedure that they had previously discussed. All requests concerning the 

4 adoption of R.T. made in January 2010, February 2010, March 2010 and April 2010 went 

5 unheeded by Tognazzini. Having obtained no definitive response to their requests, at a scheduled 

6 hearing on April 1, 2010, before the Juvenile Court, Peter and Beverly informed Judge James 

7 Herman that they wanted to formally adopt R.T. In response, Judge Herman ordered social 

8 workers, Kathy Davis and Susan Tognazzini, to notify the Adoptions Unit of CWS. After the 

9 hearing, Peter and Beverly reminded social worker Susan Tognazzini of their wish to adopt R.T. 

10 They continued to remind Tognazzini and check the status of the adoptions procedure for several 

11 weeks after the April 2010 order, but to no avail. 

	

12 	48. 	Notwithstanding, social worker Tognazzini acknowledged Plaintiffs' interest in 

13 adopting R.T. and promised to forward the request to her supervisor Kathy Davis. At this point in 

14 time, if not much earlier, Peter and Beverly met the requirements necessary to be treated as R.T. 's 

15 prospective adoptive parents under established California law. Plaintiffs had cared for R.T. for over 

16 six months, had expressed a commitment to adopt the child, and had taken at least one step to 

17 facilitate the adoption process. 

	

18 	49. 	Peter and Beverly finally decided to contact Adoptions Unit supervisor, Amy 

19 Krueger, themselves, to follow up on their efforts to adopt R.T. On April 21, 2010, Krueger 

20 referred Peter to Adoptions social worker, Julie Mann, with whom Peter and Beverly had good 

21 relations from R.T.'s placement in 2008. By this time R.T. had been in their care for nearly two 

22 years. Peter met with Mann, on May 4, 2010, to initiate the adoptions procedure. Mann stated that 

23 Peter and Beverly would have no problem adopting R.T., as everyone at CWS knew the 

24 commitment they had made to the child and of the tremendous gains he had made in their care. 

	

25 	50. 	On May 4, 2010 at 9:30 a.m. Peter met with Adoptions social worker Julie Mann to 

26 initiate formal adoptions proceedings. Unbeknownst to Peter and Beverly, Defendants' plans to 

27 unlawfully remove R.T. from their care had already been set in motion. Later that same day, at 

28 approximately 2:45 p.m. Peter and Beverly arrived at R.T.'s school to pick him up and take him to 
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1 his regular afternoon hip-hop dance class. R.T. ran up to Peter and yelled out, "You're here. You're 

2 here. You're taking me home." Tragically, this was not to be. 

	

3 
	

51. 	As Peter, Beverly, autism specialist, Dr. Russell Lang, and R.T. walked toward the 

4 I dance room facility, social worker Christel Barros approached Peter and Beverly and stated that she 

5 was removing R.T. because CWS had received a report that Peter may have pinched R.T. Barros 

6 I had no warrant or court order permitting her to remove R.T. from the custody and care of his long- 

7 term foster parents and prospective adoptive parents. In addition, neither Barros, nor anyone at 

8 CWS, provided written notice of the Agency's intent to remove R.T. at any point in time. Peter and 

9 Beverly were bewildered and confused. Beverly - correctly - told Barros that it was illegal to 

10 remove R.T. without first providing Plaintiffs seven-days written notice (and an opportunity to 

11 object to the removal and schedule a hearing) because R.T. had been with Peter and Beverly for 

12 two years and they were planning to adopt him. At this point R.T. had begun to dance and Dr. Lang 

13 was assisting him. Barros asked a few questions and started to make calls on her cell phone. She 

14 made one call after another for the next 30 minutes. 

	

15 
	

52. 	After class, as Peter, Beverly and R.T. were leaving, Barros stopped them and 

16 I demanded that they wait for the law enforcement in the central courtyard. When a deputy sheriff 

17 arrived, Barros and the deputy sheriff separately questioned R.T. Plaintiffs are informed and 

18 believe that the deputy sheriff carefully examined the boy, took photographs of a bruise on his arm, 

19 and asked R.T. how he got the bruise. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that 

20 R.T. informed the deputy sheriff that he fell off his bicycle and hurt his arm. Plaintiffs are further 

21 I informed and believe and thereon allege that after the deputy sheriff examined the bruise, he noted 

22 that it appeared as if it may have been caused by falling off his bicycle, perhaps from hitting the 

23 handlebars. In addition, Plaintiffs are informed and believe that, after having had an opportunity to 

24 observe R.T.' s interactions with Peter and Beverly, the deputy sheriff noted that R.T. was 

25 obviously attached to Plaintiffs. 

	

26 
	

53. 	Further, Dr. Lang, the autism specialist, informed Barros and the deputy sheriff that 

27 R T suffered from Autism Spectrum Disorder, language delay and inaccuracies about reporting 

28 real events, and, that in his opinion, Peter and Beverly had not abused, neglected, or mistreated 
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1 I R.T. in any way, but rather gave him everything he needed to thrive. 

	

2 
	

54. 	Barros maliciously and falsely told the officer that Beverly instructed R.T. to 

3 I concoct the "handlebar" story. Barros' statements were false and she knew it. There was no period 

4 of time in which Beverly could have influenced R.T. Indeed, Barros later acknowledged that it was 

5 I impossible for Beverly to have instructed R.T. to say that. 

	

6 
	

55. 	When it became apparent that the deputy sheriff saw no child abuse and would not, 

7 himself, seize R.T., Barros ignored the deputy sheriff's assessment and called her supervisor 

8 Division Head, Cindy Nott, who, on information and belief, instructed Barros to seize R.T. without 

9 any court order or warrant, on trumped-up grounds of "imminent danger." When Peter asked 

10 Barros how she could conclude that R.T. was in "imminent danger" of severe bodily injury or 

11 death, she simply responded that Nott - her supervisor who was not present - "said" there was 

12 imminent danger. Barros drove off with R.T. crying and punching himself in the forehead. At no 

13 time prior to said warrantless seizure, did Barros have reasonable or articulable evidence to support 

14 a reasonable suspicion that R.T. was in any danger at all, let alone imminent danger of sustaining 

15 serious bodily injury or death. Nor, was R.T. ever in any danger of sustaining severe bodily injury 

16 while in the care of Peter and Beverly. 

	

17 
	

56. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that the deputy sheriff 

18 I assigned to the investigation, concluded in a written report that no crime had occurred and that the 

19 bruise to R.T.' s arm appeared to be consistent with the statements provided by the child and 

20 Plaintiffs. Indeed, no criminal charges were ever filed against Peter or Beverly in connection with 

21 the seizure of R.T., or based on any allegation that Peter or Beverly - or anyone else - had pinched 

22 the boy. 

	

23 
	

57. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and on such basis allege that, when a state by its 

24 enactments creates the expectation that certain interests will be protected, absent specified good 

25 cause, then the state must afford procedural due process before upsetting that expectation. 

26 Plaintiffs are further informed and believe and on such basis allege that California law creates the 

27 expectation that a foster family relationship of significant duration will be protected from arbitrary 

28 destruction. Plaintiffs are further informed and believe and on such basis allege that California 
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1 I regulations require counties and social workers, including the Defendants herein, to provide 

2, I procedural due process to foster families before removing a child, like R.T., from the home. 

3 I Moreover, pursuant to the express terms of the foster care contract entered into between Plaintiffs 

4 and Social Services, the Agency specifically agreed to: "(4) Not remove the child with less than 7 

5 I calendar days written notice. . ." absent certain specified circumstances not present in this case. 

	

6 
	

58. 	Peter and Beverly requested a grievance hearing regarding R.T. '5 removal. CWS 

7! I refused to provide a grievance hearing, falsely stating that Plaintiffs were not entitled to such a 

8 hearing because the removal was based on "imminent danger." 

	

9 
	

59. 	Throughout May 2010, the remainder of 2010, all of 2011, and into 2012, Peter and 

10 I Beverly urged and pleaded for CWS to return R.T. and to allow adoption proceedings to move 

11 forward. Peter contacted Director of Social Services, Kathy Gallagher, to complain about the 

12 injustices, the lack of due process, and the absence of an investigation concerning the warrantless 

13 removal of R.T. based on false allegations that R.T. was in "imminent danger." In June 2010, 

14 Gallagher claimed that she had just learned of R.T.'s case, but that she would arrange for a 

15 telephone conference with Delfino Neira, Peter, and herself. 

	

16 
	

60. 	On or about June 9, 2010, during a scheduled telephone conference, Neira assured 

17 I Peter that his name would not be placed on the Child Abuse Central Index (CACI). However, 

18 based on a mailing from the California Department of Justice, it was apparent that Peter's name 

19 had already been improperly placed on the CACT index, even before the telephone call. On or 

20 about June 22, 2010, Peter and Beverly met with Kathy Gallagher, the director of DSS, Delfino 

21 Neira and Cindy Nott, to complain about the CACI referral and to complain that CWS was not 

22 following DSS procedures and policies. At said meeting, Kathy Gallagher warned Peter to give up 

23 the fight, and threatened him, saying, in essence, that if Peter were to challenge CWS on its 

24 decisions, then the submitted "inconclusive" report to CACI would be withdrawn and changed to 

25 "substantiated." The impact of this threat was obvious: 'Shut up, or we will really punish you.' 

	

26 
	

61. 	Consequently, Peter and Beverly suffered great stress throughout this period; they 

27 woke up regularly at around 3 a.m. in terror. They sought psychological guidance from Dr. Karen 

28 Lehman. Their schedule was disrupted as they grieved the loss of their child. For one week they 
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1 were not allowed any information about R.T. or given any information about visitation, which 

2 I caused them great emotional pain. After four brief supervised visits at the emergency shelter, Peter 

3 and Beverly were no longer allowed to visit R.T. because Defendant Delfino Neira falsely claimed 

4 I that they were "psychologically detrimental." Said injustice further amplified and increased the 

5 emotional pain and suffering of Peter and Beverly. 

	

6 
	

62. 	On or about June 16, 2010, Peter visited the Social Services building in Santa Maria 

7 to view the CWS investigation report. Peter discovered that, in addition to a false claim of 

8 "imminent danger," CWS now added a new false allegation against Beverly for "general neglect." 

9 Plaintiffs are informed and believe that said allegation was added to "pad" the Defendants' case for 

10 removal because they, and each of them, knew that the warrantless taking of R.T. was based on a 

11 false claim of "imminent danger." Nor is there any articulable evidence to support this claim of 

12 "general neglect." Said report was signed by an unknown DOE Defendant, who shall be named 

13 when Plaintiffs have had the opportunity to ascertain his/her/its identity. 3  

	

14 
	

63. 	Due to the immense stress, the terror and fear exerted by Defendants, and each of 

15 I them, the resulting emotional and physiological instability, and the financial stress to defend 

16 themselves and seek justice, Peter and Beverly were unable to resume fertility treatment that Peter 

17 and Beverly had started before R.T. entered their home and had continued into October 2009. They 

18 still sought to create a family, and friends urged Peter and Beverly to consider private adoption in 

19 order to address the loss of the child for whom they had sacrificed more than two full years of their 

20 life. However, Peter and Beverly were unable to adopt any children because Peter's name was 

21 wrongfully listed on the Child Abuse Central Index, based on false allegations of abuse. 

22 

23 

2411 / / / 

25 

26 II I// 

27 

	

28 
	

3Although an 827 petition has been granted, the Court has not yet completed its in camera review of the 
juvenile records, and Plaintiffs' counsel have not yet had access to those records or an opportunity to review them to 
ascertain the identities of all DOE Defendants. 
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1 
	

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION FOR VIOLATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS- 42 U.S.C. § 1983 

2 (By Plaintiffs Against Santa Barbara County; Social Worker Defendants; Francene Kelly; 

3 
	

and DOES 1 through 100, inclusive) 

4 
	

Count 1: 

5 
	

Fourteenth Amendment, Warrantless Removal/Removal 

6 
	

Without a Court Order, Notice, or Exigency 

7 
	

64. 	Plaintiffs reallege, and incorporate herein as if set forth in full, all of the preceding 

8 I paragraphs above. 

9 
	

65. 	While it is the legislative intent that foster care should be a temporary method of 

10 care for the children of this state, the law also recognizes and provides legal consequences of long 

11 term placement, which includes the maturation of liberty interests in the preservation of a 

12 longstanding custodial relationship between a foster parent and a foster child. The law recognizes 

13 that special and private bond exists between persons, living together as a foster family, which is 

14 amplified when a longstanding custodial relationship exists, such that a liberty interest in the 

15 family unit, deserving of the protections guaranteed to any other family, develops. Here, Santa 

16 Barbara County placed R.T. in Plaintiffs' care for approximately two years, during which time 

17 Plaintiffs and R.T. bonded and formed a family unit. Further, Plaintiffs had expressed an interest in 

18 adoption, and took steps to facilitate the adoption process. Plaintiffs, as R.T. ' s prospective adoptive 

19 parents, had a legally recognized, quasi-parental relationship with R.T., which conferred 

20 substantial rights and benefits under well established law. 

21 
	

66. 	In light of the long standing custodial relationship between R.T. and Plaintiffs, and 

22 I their status as a "prospective adoptive parents," or at minimum, long-term foster parents who had 

23 expressed a sincere interest in adopting R.T., Plaintiffs were entitled to due process, prior to 

24 removal of the child, including notice of the County's intent to remove R.T. and a full opportunity 

25 to be heard. Indeed, all foster parents, as a contractual matter, are guaranteed the same or similar 

26 rights, by virtue of the state mandated, form contract, "Agency - Foster Parents Agreement," SOC 

27 156, all foster parents must enter into. See attached Exhibit "A," "Agency - Foster Parents 

28 Placement Agreement." See also attached Exhibit "B", California Department of Social Services 
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1 Manual, §31-440. Plaintiffs entered into such a written agreement with the County of Santa 

2 I Barbara. Thus, under common law, statute, and the terms of their written contract, Plaintiffs were 

3 entitled to due process of law before R.T. could be removed from their care in the absence of 

4 exigency. This due process right includes both the right to notice and an opportunity to be heard, 

5 and the right not to be lied about in court proceedings. 

	

6 
	

67. 	Social Worker Defendants and Francene Kelly, and each of them, and DOES 1 

7 I through 100, inclusive, were acting under color of state law when they acted, or knew and agreed 

8 and thereby conspired, to remove R.T. from Plaintiffs' care, without first obtaining a warrant or 

9 court order and in the absence of exigent circumstances. In so doing, they unlawfully removed R.T. 

10 from Plaintiffs' care without first providing adequate notice or an opportunity to be heard, and with 

11 deliberate indifference to the substantial rights of Plaintiffs, and each of them. Plaintiffs are 

12 informed and believe and on such basis allege that Defendant Francene Kelly jointly participated 

13 and willfully collaborated in the formulation of the common plan or scheme to unlawfully remove 

14 R.T. from their care and in violation of law; and, to the extent that she did so, she was also acting 

15 under color of state law. At no time during the course of conduct alleged herein did Francene Kelly 

16 ever initiate or otherwise prosecute any juvenile dependency petition seeking court orders to 

17 remove R.T. from Plaintiffs' care. if she had done so, they would have been given proper, pre- 

18 deprivation, notice of such an action. No such pre-deprivation notice was ever provided - by any of 

19 the Defendants - including Francene Kelly. 

	

20 
	

68. 	Defendants, and each of them, voluntarily collaborated, acted in concert, and 

21, I conspired to violate the civil rights of the Plaintiffs, including violation of Plaintiffs' rights found 

22 in the Due Process Clause under the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution, by, 

23 but not limited to, removing, detaining and continuing to detain, the child R.T. from the care, 

24 custody, and control of his long term foster parents and prospective adoptive parents, Plaintiffs, 

25 Peter Huk and Beverly Raff, without exigent circumstances; without providing adequate notice or 

26 an opportunity to be heard; by the use of coercion and duress; and by using false and fabricated 

27 evidence and testimony and failing to provide exculpatory evidence during the pendency of the 

28 dependency proceedings in violation of, and interference with, Plaintiffs' constitutional right to due 
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1 I process under the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution. 

	

2 
	

69. 	The acts of these Defendants, and each of them, were wrongful in that any 

3 government agent, or private attorney acting in concert with a government agent, faced with similar 

4 circumstances would have known it was wrongful to remove R.T. from the care of Plaintiffs 

5 without first obtaining a court order or warrant permitting such removal. 

	

6 
	

70. 	The aforementioned acts of Defendants, and each of them, were undertaken 

7 knowingly, wilfully, and maliciously with the intent to harm Plaintiffs, or alternatively with a 

8 conscious disregard of Plaintiffs' substantial rights, and did in fact result in severe harm to 

9 Plaintiffs in an amount according to proof at trial. 

	

10 
	

71. 	As a direct and proximate result of these Defendants' misconduct, Plaintiffs have 

11 I suffered, and will continue to suffer, general and special damages according to proof at trial, 

12 including but not limited to, physical and/or mental anxiety and anguish, among other things. 

	

13 
	

72. 	The wrongful conduct of Social Worker Defendants and Francene Kelly as herein 

14 alleged was intentional, done with malice, oppression, and fraud, and with a conscious disregard 

15 for the rights of the Plaintiffs, and as a result of this despicable conduct, Plaintiffs are entitled to 

16 recover punitive damages from Defendants, and each of them, as permitted by law and as 

17 according to proof at trial. 

	

18 
	

Count 2: 

	

19 
	

Fourteenth Amendment - Judicial Deception 

	

20 
	

73. 	Plaintiffs reallege, and incorporate herein as if set forth in full, all of the preceding 

21 paragraphs above. 

	

22 
	

74. 	Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that at all times relevant 

23 herein, there existed a clearly established due process right - not to be subjected to false accusations 

24 on the basis of false evidence that was deliberately fabricated by the government, such that a 

25 reasonable social worker, or private attorney acting in concert with the remaining Defendants, in 

26 Defendants' situation would know it is unlawful to lie, fabricate evidence, and/or suppress 

27 exculpatory evidence in court reports or any other documents filed with the juvenile court to 

28 influence judicial decision making. Similarly, Plaintiffs allege that any reasonable minor's counsel 
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1 and/or other agent of the government faced with similar circumstances as those presented to 

2 Francene Kelly would have known it was a violation of the Plaintiffs' substantial rights arising 

3 under both state and federal law to commit the acts herein alleged. At no time during the course of 

4 conduct alleged herein did Francene Kelly ever initiate or otherwise prosecute any juvenile 

5 I dependency petition seeking court orders to remove R.T. from Plaintiffs' care. Rather she 

6 I intentionally misled the juvenile dependency court in order to further the joint effort to remove and 

7 I continue to detain R.T. from Plaintiffs and malign Plaintiffs in the eyes of the juvenile dependency 

8 court. 

	

9 
	

75. 	In doing the things alleged hereinabove, Defendants, and each of them, voluntarily 

10 collaborated, acted in concert, and conspired to violate the above identified rights of the Plaintiffs, 

11 including violation of Plaintiffs' rights found in the Due Process Clause under the Fourteenth 

12 Amendment of the United States Constitution by, but not limited to, withholding and failing to 

13 provide required notice; denying Plaintiffs an opportunity to be heard; by the use of coercion and 

14 duress; and by using false and fabricated evidence and testimony and failing to provide exculpatory 

15 evidence during the pendency of the dependency proceedings in violation of, and interference with, 

16 Plaintiffs' constitutional right to due process under the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States 

17 Constitution. 

	

18 
	

76. 	In so doing, Defendants, and each of them, were acting under color of state law. 

19 I They did these things without proper justification or authority. Further, Defendants' actions were 

20 taken with deliberate indifference to Plaintiffs' due process rights, and in conscious disregard of 

21 Plaintiffs' right not to be lied about by government agents in any court proceeding where 

22 substantial rights were at stake. 

	

23 
	

77. 	Defendants, and each of them, maliciously conspired to violate the civil rights of 

24 Plaintiffs, including violation of Plaintiffs' rights found in the Fourteenth Amendment of the 

25 United States Constitution by the use of coercion and duress to obtain evidence and testimony, and 

26 by maliciously falsifying evidence, and presenting fabricated evidence to the court, and maliciously 

27 refusing to provide exculpatory evidence during the pendency of the dependency proceedings. 

	

28 
	

78. 	As a direct and proximate result of these Defendants' violations, and in accordance 
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with 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, Plaintiffs' civil rights have been violated in that they have suffered, 

and will continue to suffer, general and special damages in an amount not yet ascertained but 

I which shall be shown according to proof at trial. 

79. 	The wrongful conduct of Social Worker Defendants, Francene Kelly, and each of 

them, as herein alleged was intentional, done with malice, oppression, or fraud, and with a 

conscious disregard for the rights of the Plaintiffs, and as a result of this despicable conduct, 

I Plaintiffs are therefore entitled to recover punitive damages in accordance with law and subject to 

proof at trial. 

Count 3: 

Fourteenth Amendment - Procedural Due Process 

IiJ 
	

Plaintiffs reallege, and incorporate herein as if set forth in full, all of the preceding 

I paragraphs above. 

81. In aggravation of the failure to provide Plaintiffs with pre-removal due process, 

I stated in Count 1, above, and incorporated herein by reference, Defendants further violated 

Plaintiffs' constitutional rights by denying Plaintiffs the opportunity to object to the removal, after 

the child was removed. See Cal. Welf. & Inst. Code §366.26(n)(4). 

82. Pursuant to Cal. Weif. & Inst. Code §366.26(n)(4), even if a child is removed, 

without notice, due to exigent circumstances, within two days, the agency must provide notice of 

the removal to the court, any prospective adoptive parents or persons meeting the criteria to be 

designated a prospective adoptive parent, the child's attorney, and, where relevant, the child. 

83. At no time during the removal of R.T. from Plaintiffs' care, nor within two days 

I following the removal, did Santa Barbara County give notice of the removal or advise Plaintiffs of 

their right to contest the removal of R.T. Rather, Santa Barbara County, by and through its social 

worker, Defino Neira, maliciously misrepresented to Plaintiffs that they could not object to the 

removal, and that only a grievance hearing for the limited purpose of contesting the propriety of a 

referral to CACI was available. Said misrepresentations were made with knowledge of their falsity 

at the time made, or with reckless disregard for the truth, and Santa Barbara County intended that 

Plaintiffs rely upon said misrepresentations to their detriment. On or about May 4, 2010, when 
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1 Plaintiffs demanded a grievance hearing concerning the removal of R.T., Santa Barbara County 

2 I summarily denied the request and continued to refuse to provide any form of notice of rights or 

3 I grievance process at all. 

	

4 
	

84. 	Social Worker Defendants and Francene Kelly, and each of them, and DOES 1 

5 I through 100, inclusive, were acting under color of state law when they acted, or knew and agreed 

6 and thereby conspired, to remove R.T. from Plaintiffs' care, without first obtaining a warrant or 

7 court order, under the pretense of exigent circumstances, and thereafter in failing to provide the 

8 abovementioned mandatory notice to the juvenile court and interested parties, such that Plaintiffs 

9 could not avail themselves of an opportunity to object to the removal and/or be heard. Said 

10 Defendants, and each of them, acting under color of state law, knew and agreed and thereby 

11 collaborated with one another to deprive Plaintiffs of their due process rights by falsely 

12 misrepresenting that Plaintiffs could not seek review of the decision to remove the child, and by 

13 failing to provide Plaintiffs the statutorily mandated notice. Said acts and omissions were taken 

14 with deliberate indifference to the substantial rights of Plaintiffs. Notwithstanding, it should be 

15 noted that, at no time during the course of conduct alleged herein, did Francene Kelly ever initiate 

16 or otherwise prosecute any juvenile dependency petition seeking court orders to remove R.T. from 

17 Plaintiffs' care. 

	

18 
	

85. 	Plaintiffs' rights, as outlined above, were clearly established at the time of the 

19 occurrences alleged hereinabove. 

	

20 
	

86. 	The acts of each of the Defendants were wrongful in that any reasonable 

21 I government agent, or private party acting in concert with a government agent, faced with similar 

22 circumstances would have known it was wrongful, and a violation of Plaintiffs' constitutional 

23 rights, to do the things alleged herein above, and that in doing such things the substantial rights of 

24 Plaintiffs, and each of them, would be violated. Further, the acts of each of the Defendants were 

25 wrongful in that any reasonable government agent faced with similar circumstances would have 

26 known it was wrongful to remove R.T. from the care of Plaintiffs and use trickery and ruse to 

27 deprive them of notice and an opportunity to be heard, regarding their objection to R.T.'s removal. 

	

87. 	The aforementioned acts of Defendants, and each of them, were undertaken 
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1 I knowingly, wilfully, and maliciously with the intent to harm Plaintiffs, or alternatively with a 

2 conscious disregard of Plaintiffs' substantial rights, and did in fact result in severe harm to 

3 I Plaintiffs in an amount according to proof at trial. 

	

4 
	

88. 	As a direct and proximate result of these Defendants' violations, and in accordance 

5 I with 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, Plaintiffs' civil rights have been violated such that they have 

6 suffered, and will continue to suffer, damages, including but not limited to, physical and/or mental 

7 I anxiety and anguish, among other things, in an amount not yet ascertained, all of which shall be 

8 shown according to proof at trial. 

	

9 
	

89. 	The wrongful conduct of Defendants, and each of them, was intentional, done with 

10 malice, oppression, and fraud, and with a conscious disregard for the rights of the Plaintiffs, and as 

11 a result of this despicable conduct, Plaintiffs are therefore entitled to recover punitive damages 

12 from Social Worker Defendants, Francene Kelly, and DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, only in an 

13 amount commensurate with the nature of the Defendants' wrongful acts and the amount of the 

14 individual Defendants' wealth. 

	

15 
	

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION: MONELL-RELATED CLAIMS 

	

16 
	

By Plaintiffs Against Santa Barbara County; Kathy Gallagher (in her official capacity); 

	

17 
	

Delfino Neira (in his official capacity); and DOES 1 through 100, inclusive. 

	

18 
	

90. 	Plaintiffs reallege, and to the extent applicable, incorporate herein as if set forth in 

19 I full, each of the foregoing paragraphs. 

	

20 
	

91. 	At all relevant times herein, Defendant Santa Barbara County, including through its 

21 agencies, DSS and CWS, established and/or followed policies, procedures, customs and/or 

22 practices (hereinafter collectively referred to as "policy" or "policies") which policies were the 

23 cause - or moving force - of the violations of Plaintiffs' constitutional rights, including those 

24 under the Fourteenth Amendment, by, but not limited to: 

	

25 	 a. 	the policy of denying prospective adoptive parents and/or long term foster 

26 parents their due process rights by failing to give adequate notice of proceedings potentially 

27 
affecting those rights; 

28 

b. 	the policy of removing and/or detaining children from the homes of their 
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1 prospective adoptive parent(s) and/or long term foster parents without providing the prospective 

2 adoptive parent(s) and/or long term foster parents with adequate notice of their removal, or an 

3 
opportunity to be heard; 

	

5 	 C. 	the policy of refusing foster parents the placement preferences codified in 

6 Welfare & Institutions Code section 366.26(k); 

	

7 	 d. 	the policy of violating the provisions of Welfare & Institutions Code section 

8 362.7 by failing to investigate the familial or mentoring relationship between a foster child and its 
9 

10 non-relative extended family members in considering placement of the child; 

11 	 e. 	the policy of removing and detaining children, and not returning them to 

12 their prospective adoptive parents and/or long term foster parents beyond a reasonable period after 

13 the basis for detention is negated; 

14  
f. 	the policy of using trickery, duress, fabrication of evidence, and/or false 

15 
16 testimony, and in failing to provide exculpatory evidence, in preparing and presenting reports and 

17 court documents to the Court, thereby causing an interference with the Plaintiffs' rights, including 

18 those as to familial integrity and/or relations, and injuring and harming them; and 

	

19 	 g. 	By acting with deliberate indifference in implementing a policy of 

20 inadequate training, and/or by failing to train and/or supervise its officers, agents and employees, in 
21 
22 providing the Constitutional protections guaranteed to individuals, including those under the 

23 Fourteenth Amendment, when performing actions related to child abuse and dependency type 

24 proceedings. 

	

25 	(This list is not exhaustive due to the pending nature of discovery and the privileged and 

26 protected nature of investigative and juvenile records). 

	

27 	92. 	Defendant Santa Barbara County had a duty to Plaintiffs at all times to establish, 

28 implement and follow policies, procedures, customs and/or practices which confirm and provide 
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1 for the protections guaranteed them under the United States Constitution, including the Fourteenth 

2 Amendment; to use reasonable care to select, supervise, train, control and review the activities of 

3 all agents, officers and employees in their employ, including within DSS and CWS; and further, to 

4 refrain from acting with deliberate indifference to the Constitutional rights of Plaintiffs so as not to 

5 cause them the injuries and damages alleged herein. 

	

6 
	

93. 	Santa Barbara County breached its duties and obligations to Plaintiffs by, but not 

7 limited to, failing to establish, implement and follow the correct and proper Constitutional policies, 

8 procedures, customs and practices; by failing to properly select, supervise, train, control, and 

9 review their agents and employees as to their compliance with Constitutional safeguards; and by 

10 permitting Social Worker Defendants, and DOES 1 through 100, inclusive, to engage in the 

11 unlawful and unconstitutional conduct as herein alleged. 

	

12 
	

I 94.Defendants acted with deliberate indifference in that they knew, or should have 

13 known that by breaching the abovementioned duties and obligations, that it was foreseeable that 

14 they would, and did, cause Plaintiffs to be injured and damaged by their wrongful policies and acts 

15 as alleged herein, and that such breaches occurred in contravention of public policy and as to their 

16 legal duties and obligations to Plaintiffs. 

	

17 
	

95. 	These actions, and/or inactions, of Defendants are the direct and proximate cause of 

18 Plaintiffs' injuries and the moving force in causing all of the conduct of the social worker 

19 Defendants named herein and as alleged herein; and as a result, Plaintiffs have sustained general 

20 and special damages, to an extent and in an amount to be proven at trial. 

	

21 
	

PRAYER 

22 I WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants as follows: 

	

23 
	

1. 	Plaintiffs demand a jury trial as to the issues so triable; 

	

24 
	

2. 	General damages and special damages according to proof; 

	

25 
	

3. 	Punitive damages as allowed by law; 

	

26 
	

4. 	Attorney's fees pursuant to 42 U.S .C. § 1988, and any other appropriate statute; 

	

27 
	

5. 	Injunctive relief, both preliminary and permanent, targeting the unconstitutional 

28 polices, practices, customs, usages, and deficient training and supervision of Santa Barbara social 
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ii workers and minor's counsel as allowed by law, (including preliminary injunctive relief based 

2 upon a separate application to be filed after the presentation of evidence at trial); 

3 
	

6. 	Costs of suit incurred herein; and 

4 
	

7. 	Such further relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

5 

6 Dated: June 5, 2012 	 THE LAW OFFICES OF SHAwN A. MCMILLAN, APC 

7 

8 

9 
	

Shawn A. McMillan, q. 
Stephen D. Darter, Esq. 

10 
	

Samuel H. Park, Esq. 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs, 

11 
	

Peter Huk & Beverly Raff 
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EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA - HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY 	 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

AGENCY - FOSTER PARENTS PLACEMENT AGREEMENT 
Nonminor Dependent Placed by Agency in Foster Home 

COMPLETE IN DUPLICATE 
One copy to Foster parents 

Young adults' social services 
record 

The agreement will be initiated when the young adult is placed in the facility and whenever the rate 

NAME OF YOUNG ADULT 
	

FOSTER PARENT'S NAME 

BIRTHDATE OF YOUNG ADULT 	 I CASE NUMBER 

DATE PLACED 
	

ADDRESS (YOUNG ADULT'S PHYSICAL ADDRESS) 

Anticipated duration of placement is 	 months. 

The Agency will pay $ __________ per 	for the above-mentioned young adult's care and supervision as defined in Welfare and Institutions 
Code 11460 and other applicable law and regulations. 

First payment to be within 45 days after placement with subsequent payments no later than the 15th of the month following provision of care. If additional 
amounts are to be paid, the reason, the amount and conditions shall be set forth here:  

Li No Li Yes If 

AGENCY AGREES TO: 	 I 	 FOSTER PARENTS AGREE TO: 

1. The placing agency will obtain from the young adult all appropriate 
releases of information relevant to this placement in order to provide 
the foster parent with knowledge of the background and needs of the 
young adult necessary for effective care. This may include, based on 
the young adult's consent, a social work assessment, medical 
reports, educational assessment, and identification of special needs 
and the young adult's TILP. This shall be made available to foster 
parents within 14 days from date of placement. 

2. Develop a transition plan for the young adult and share pertinent 
aspects with the foster parents. 

3. Inform the provider, before placement, of this young adult's behaviors 
and proclivities that might be harmful to others (including pets) in the 
home, school or neighborhood. 

4. Work with foster parents toward successful completion of the young 
adult's transition plan, a positive placement outcome and timely 
permanency for the young adult. 

5. Work with foster parents in the development and progress of a 
transition plan. The county placing agency will notify and invite the 
foster parent to participate in any young adult and family team 
meetings to discuss the young adult's transition plan. 

6. Work together with the foster parents to develop and maintain positive 
relationships with the young adult's significant others, siblings and 
other family members. 

7. Continue paying for the young adult's care as long as the young adult 
remains in placement or in the temporary absence of the young adult, 
when the placing agency asks the provider to retain an open 
placement. 

8. Provide procedure for grievances of foster parents. 
9. Contact the young adult and foster parents at least once a month. 
10. Inform the provider of the county clothing allowance policy and pro-

vide the funding consistent with those policies. 
11. Provide arrangements for travel to the young adult's secondary 

school of origin, as appropriate. 
12. verify and remit/reconcile any underpayments within 45 days of 

provider notification of such underpayments. 
13. Notify the provider within 12 months of suspected overpayments, in 

accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 
14. Provide assistance with emergencies. Phone number for after-hours 

or weekends is:  

1. Provide this young adult the nurture, care, clothing, supervisions and 
assistance to obtain life skills and experiences suited to his or her 
needs. 

2. Develop an understanding of the responsibilities, objectives, and 
requirements of the Agency in regard to the care of this young adult. 

3. Notify the placing agency within 24 hours of having knowledge (unless 
there is a separate written agreement with the placing agency) by 
phone followed in writing of significant changes in the young adult's 
health, behavior or location as well as significant issues including 
suspected physical or psychological abuse, death, injury, unusual 
incidents, unusual absence of a young adult, placement issues, 
changes to work or school participation and all items required by 
approval or licensing standard regulations. 

4. Work together with the placing agency to encourage the maintenance 
of permanent connections with the young adult's siblings, other family 
members and significant adults, as indicated in the transition plan, 
and/or by the young adult and family team meetings whenever 
possible. 

5. Support the young adult in working on the activities for education and 
employment as described in the TILP. 

6. Use constructive alternative methods of harm reduction, not use 
corporal punishment, or punishment in the presence of others, 
deprivation of meals, monetary allowances, threat of removal or any 
type of degrading or humiliating punishment. 

7. Respect and keep confidential information given about the young 
adult. 

8. Give the agency prior notice of at least 7 days if removal of the young 
adult is requested unless it is agreed upon with the agency that less 
time is necessary. 

9. Follow the licensing requirements. 
10. Provide agency access to required documentation and records 

maintained for the young adult. 
11. Follow any requirements associated with county's clothing allowance 

policy and procedure. 
12. Remit any overpayment in full to the county welfare department upon 

receipt of a notice or following the completion of due process. 
13. Inform county upon discovery of apparent overpayment. 
14. Immediately notify the placing agency of any changes to the young 

adult's arrangement for educational travel to the secondary school of 
origin (if appropriate). 

FOSTER PARENT'S NAME 

PRINT: 	 SIGNATURE: 

PHONE 

1 
FOSTER FAMILY AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE'S NAME 

PRINT* 	 SIGNATUR: 

PHONE 

I 	I 
NAME OF AGENCY: TITLE: DATE 

AGENCY - FOSTER PARENTS 	 Confidential in accordance with 
Penal Code Section 11167.5 and/or 

SOC 156A (1/12) REQUIRED FORM - NO SUBSTITUTE PERMITTED 	PLACEMENT AGREEMENT 	 WIC Sections 827 and 10850 
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CHILD WELFARE SERVICES PROGRAM 
-- PLACEMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CHAPTER 31-400 PLACEMENT 

Section 

General Requirements for Placement................................................................................................31-401 

Social Worker Responsibilities for Placement ..................................................................................31-405 

Social Worker/Probation Officer Responsibilities for Placement 
in a Community Treatment Facility ................................................................................................31-406 

TemporaryPlacement........................................................................................................................31-410 

EmergencyShelter Care....................................................................................................................31-415 

FosterCare Placement.......................................................................................................................31-420 

PermanentPlacement ................. ........................................................................................................ 31-425 

Additional Requirements for Voluntary Placements .........................................................................31-430 

Out-of-County and Out-of-State Placement Requirements ...............................................................31-435 

Foster Parent(s) Notification Requirements ......................................................................................31-440 

Requirements for Approval of Relative and Nonrelative Extended Family Member Foster 
FamilyHomes . ................................................................................................................................31-445 
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CHILD WELFARE SERVICES PROGRAM 
31-430 (Cont.) 	 PLACEMENT 	 Regulations 

31-430 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VOLUNTARY PLACEMENTS 	31-430 
(Continued) 

.33 Assist the parent(s)/guardian(s) of voluntarily placed children to understand that he/she still 
retains legal custody of the child even though he/she voluntarily places the child with the agency; 
and that he/she may limit by written agreement the scope of the foster parent's authority to give 
parental consent. 

.34 Ensure that the computation of the share of costs is completed pursuant to Welfare and Institutions 
Code Section 16507.4(a). 

NOTE: Authority Cited: Sections 10553 and 10554, Welfare and Institutions Code. Reference: Sections 
16507.2, 16507.3, and 16507.4, Welfare and Institutions Code. 

31-435 OUT-OF-COUNTY AND OUT-OF-STATE 	 31-435 
PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Out-of-county placements shall be subject to the additional criteria specified in Section 31-505. 

.2 	Out-of-state placements shall be subject to the additional criteria specified in Section 31-510. 

.21 Prior to placing a child in an out-of-state group home, the county multidisciplinary team shall 
assess the child's need for an out-of-state group home placement and make a placement 
recommendation to the court. Upon an order from the court, the county placing agency shall make 
the placement pursuant to the Interstate Compact on the Placement of Children (Section 31-510). 

NOTE: Authority Cited: Sections 10553 and 10554, Welfare and Institutions Code. Reference: Section 
361.2, Welfare and Institutions Code; and Sections 7901, 7911, 7911.1, and 7912, Family Code. 

31-440 FOSTER PARENT(S) NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 	 31440 

.1 	The foster parent(s) shall be given at least seven calendar days' advance written notice of intent to 
remove a child, and of the right to request a grievance review. 

.11 The county shall have the authority to include a waiver of the notice requirement specified in 
Section 31-440.1 in the written placement agreement with the foster parent(s). 

	

111 	Waivers shall not exceed six months from the date of placement. 

	

.112 	Waivers shall be considered exceptions used solely to meet unusual individual needs. 

.2 	The county shall not be required to provide the notice specified in Section 31-440.1 if one or more of the 
following conditions exist: 
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CHILD WELFARE SERVICES PROGRAM 
Regulations 	 PLACEMENT 	 31-440 

31-440 FOSTER PARENT(S) NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 	 31440 
(Continued) 

21 The child is in immediate danger. 

22 A signed waiver of notice has been obtained from the foster parent(s), as specified in Section 31-
440.11. 

23 A court has ordered the child's removal. 

24 Adverse licensing or approval actions have occurred that prohibit the foster parent(s) from 
continuing to provide services. 

.25 Removal of a voluntarily placed child is made or requested by the child's parent(s)/guardians. 

26 The child is removed from an emergency placement. 

.3 	For foster parents providing permanent placement services the social worker shall provide the foster 
parent(s) with written notice explaining the court order that permanent placement services be terminated. 

31 The county shall be permitted to use a copy of the court report or modified service plan for 
purposes of notifying the foster parent(s), if appropriate. 

.4 	A relative or nonrelative extended family member whose home has been deemed not to meet the 
approval standards shall be given notice that their home does not meet approval standards and that they 
have access to the grievance procedures set forth in MPP Section 31-020, provided they appeal the 
agency's decision in writing within 5 working days of their receipt of the notice. 

NOTE: Authority Cited: Sections 10553 and 10554, Welfare and Institutions Code; and Assembly Bill 1695, 
Section 21. Reference: Section 16501, Welfare and Institutions Code; and Assembly Bill 1695 (Chapter 653, 
Statutes of 2001). 
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